2004

# Leslie D. Bosch v. Albert B. Bosch : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## **STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW**

1. **Alimony** -Mr. Blossch was given almost the entire amount of marital property. The judge did not list his reasons for his determinations nor did he list the petitioner's expenses. Appellant received 5% of the marital assets. He refused to comply with interrogatory requests and should be made to do so. The appellant request for alimony was \$5,026.87 per month and she was awarded \$1300.00 for 3 years beginning from October 1, 2003. She was not awarded rehabilitative alimony or for the full length of the marriage. She married petitioner based upon the predication of his stating that she was able to be a stay at home wife and mother. The marriage was very abusive and the petitioner finally left the marriage.

**Standard of Review:** Clearly Erroneous Standard, Clear Weight of the Evidence is Against the judgment, Without due process allowed.

**Supporting authority:** Willey V. Willey 951 P.2d 226, Utah Code

CAnnotated s. 30-3-5 (7) (a), (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), Utah Code Annotated s 30-3-5 (7) (h), Willey v. Willey, 866 P.2d 547, 549, Utah Code Annotated 30-3-5

(7)d). Utah Code 30-2-1, Munns, 790 P.2d at 118, Workman v. Workman 652 P.2d 931, 932 (Utah 1982), Savage v. Savage 658, P.2d 1201, 1203-05 (Utah 1983), Burke v. Burke, 733 P.2d 133 (Utah 1987) Savage v Savage: Lee v. Lee supra, Gardner v. Gardner, supra: Jones v. Jones, 700 P.2d 1072 (Utah 1985)

2. **Property Division**- Real property was not disclosed. Petitioner's failure to comply in his handling in his interrogatory requests held the trial back. He lied about everything. He finally came forward with a one word answer about some apartments two days before trial.

**Standard of Review**: Clearly Erroneous Standard, Clear Weight of the Evidence is against the judgment, without due process allowed

**Supporting Authority**: See above under alimony. I did not doubly list them because of space.

3. **Discovery**- I was promised by the judge in going to trial that I would be able to do discovery on the marital property after the trial. He then told me no and would not let me do it. He told the clerk's at the clerk's office not to allow me to do it. I have not been able to hand out any subpoenas.

**Standard of Review**: Clearly Erroneous Standard, Clear Weight of the Evidence is against the judgment, against Utah Law.



**Supporting Authority:** URCP Rule 26 (F) (2) (B), United States

Constitutional Amendment XIV, Section 1, USCA XIV Section 5, Burke v. Burke, Supra; Englert v. Englert, 576 P.2S Supreme Court, Utah Code 30-3-5 (1), Dunn v. Dunn, Maxwell v. Maxwell, 754 P.2d 84, 86-87

4. **401 (k), financial assets and holdings of every kind-** The wrong amount was represented at trial. It was fraud on the part of both attorneys to stipulate to a value other than that-to which they both knew, existed at the time of trial. However, question really does exist about the true and accurate amount. I would like to do discovery in regard to this issue.

**Stock** Please take note: Mr. Albert Blosch in this caption has deposited into my America First Credit Union at two different time frames the amount of \$8,382.60-to represent his word of mouth amount of stock he says was in the marital stock at the time of divorce. I have transferred this amount back into his account both times. I do want my stock money. I am not representing his amounts until they are verified.

**Standard of Review:** Fraudulence, Clear Weight of the Evidence is against the judgment, Clearly Erroneous Standards, Substantial rights of the parties.  
Supporting Authority: See above under alimony. (The same but not doubly listed for space purposes.

5. **Abuse of Discretion**-So many acts of abuse of discretion have taken place with this court and with the actions of counsel that were hired to represent me.

**Standard of Review:** Violation of Utah Law and Procedure, Clearly Erroneous Standard, Clear Weight of the Evidence is against the judgment.

**Supporting Authority:** Look under the heading of discovery and Munns, will not list twice for space issues. Willey v. Willey, 866 P.2d 547, appeal after remand 914 P.2d 1149, Certiorari granted 925 P.2d 963, reversed 951 P.2d 226.

6. **Attorney fee's and costs**-I was not awarded attorney costs only in the amount of \$6500.00 when the petitioner received approximately \$17,000 for this self-same caption.

**Standard of Review:** Clear Weight of the Evidence is against the Judgment. Clearly Erroneous Standard.

**Supporting Authority:** See heading under alimony will not list twice for space issues. And Munns

7. **Taxes**-were never discussed nor had an opportunity or time to argue. The court made no finding but the opposing counsel added it in anyway. A trial needs to be done.

**Standard of Review:** Incorrect facts and findings. No hearing was made one this. Clearly Erroneous standard, vacate of the Judgment, new issue somewhat on appeal.

**Supporting Authority:** State v. Irwin, 924 P.2d5 (Utah Ct. App. 1996) cert denied, 931 P.2d 146 (Utah 1997). Any facts that are without the preponderance of the evidence must be vacated.

8. **Facts & finding and conclusions of Law-**All items I have listed here in this argument, (see argument) are not listed correctly on the divorce decree. There are other things as well including the debts incurred by Mr. Albert S. Bloch. There are so many, I would ask the court to vacate the judgment on the facts and findings of the divorce decree and remand them to the district court to determine accurate representations-after the hearings have been conducted to fiduciate-an affirmative confirmation of the events and allocations set forth in this caption.

**Standard of Review:** Clearly Erroneous Standard. Clear weight of the evidence is against the judgment.

**Supporting Authority:** State v. Irwin, 924 p.2d 5 (Utah Ct. App. 1996) cert denied, 931 P.2d 136 (Utah 1997).

### **THE GOVERNING STATUTE**

Utah Code Annotated s 30-3-5 (1) (Supp. 1988) provides, in pertinent part: When a decree of divorce is rendered, the court may include in it equitable orders relating to the children, property and parties.

### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

The parties were married on June 12, 1996. Albert Blosch (hereinafter “Albert or Mr. Blosch) and Leslie D. Blosch (hereinafter “Leslie or Mrs. Blosch), had no children-yet. The marriage was an abusive one and built on lies. Mrs. Blosch told Mr. Blosch that she wanted to be a stay-at-home mother and/or wife. She asked Mr. Blosch what he wanted and if he had any problems with this. He said no, it is what he wanted too. With this in mind and the double standard of life that Mr. Blosch led due to his habit of 20 years or more of serious pornography addiction and abuse-the marriage hit the rocks and eventually ended with substantial emotional duress taking its toll on Mrs. Blosch. Mr. Blosch admitted that he never had any intentions of living up to his promises prior to the marriage. He admitted to Mrs. Blosch 5 years into the marriage that he lied just to be with her. Thus, he used Mrs. Blosch mentally, emotionally, physically and every way.

A hearing for an Order to Show Cause was scheduled on September 10, 2002. The case was heard in an Order to Show Cause on September 27, 2002. An objection hearing to this trial was heard on November 5, 2002.

Mediation took place and failed. Albert's idea of settling is to make me agree to settle for nothing. A pre-trial conference lists minutes of December 9, 2002. During this hearing in which counsel met in chambers-a scheduling order was discussed. It was stated that supplement discovery was wanted and it was to be completed in 2 weeks. On December 11, 2002 a domestic conference was scheduled for January 21, 2003. Also, on December 11, 2002 a pre-trial conference was scheduled for February 13, 2003. Both counsel phoned and cancelled domestic conference set for 1/21/03. Due to the status of the case both decided to do so. On 2/13/03-It was recommended that case was to be certified for trial. Yet, it does not state what date was certified for trial on the docket. On 5/12/03 trial was cancelled. Bench trial was set on August 11, 2003 @ 9:00 with Judge Page. Bench trial cancelled on 6/11/03. Bench trial scheduled for August 25, 2003. Bench trial cancelled on August 13, 2003. Telephone conference rescheduled for August 22, 2003. It doesn't state that the trial in August was cancelled-although it was. September 22, 2004- phone conference with both parties to do a Motion to Continue the Trial-at that point due to the lack of response from the petitioner not answering his interrogatory requests. The petitioner and his counsel did not answer their interrogatory requests and many cancellations of trial dates and phone conferences were made. It was

continually waiting for them to comply with open promises-which did not yield any fruit other than frustration. Days before the trial Mr. Bloch revealed certain information without any addresses at all-leaving no time for discovery. All along we had waited for them to comply. Discovery was not done on the places that we found. Corroborating information was needed and I had been waiting for it. No motion to compel was ever filed by my attorney at that time-Denise P. Larkin-although I had asked her to do so multiple times. The judge allowed the trial to go forward without the compliance of the petitioner-making false promises to me about doing discovery on assets after the trial. On the last day of court-he told me I could not do discovery-it was over.

The 1<sup>st</sup> day of trial was held on September 29, 2003 with the second day of trial proceeding on November 7, 2003. After this post-trial motions have been filed up until February 24, 2004. On this date of 2/4/04 there was a hearing on a notice for a new trial-issued by Judge Rodney Page.

The marriage was bifurcated on September 29, 2003-by the ruling of Judge Page. The divorce was addressed as being granted to both parties. Grounds were not mentioned-until after the ruling.

### **STATEMENT OF THE FACTS**

**a. Parties situation at the time of marriage.** The parties were married on June 12, 1996 in Reno, Nevada. They had no children. A petition for a decree of divorce was filed in the district court on July 3, 2002. The marriage was based upon fraudulent information. Mrs. Blossch met Mr. Blossch at work. Before the marriage Mrs. Blossch spoke to Mr. Blossch of her desire to be a stay-at-home mother and/or wife. She let Mr. Blossch know this prior to the marriage-in turn Mr. Blossch told Mrs. Blossch this is what he wanted to. Mrs. Blossch said she would work outside the home until pre-marital debt was paid off. Mrs. Blossch made little. She made very little and her paycheck stub indicates in the year they were married that she made less than \$2,167.00 yearly in wages. Mr. Blossch was an airline pilot. He worked for Skywest Airlines. He was a first-officer on the metro-he claims. It is indicated that he made \$35,551.58 per year-at Skywest. Within 4 months Mrs. Blossch quit her job to - (a. as planned she would after a beauty contest she was in) (b. to be with her husband who wanted to move to San Diego, California). Mrs. Blossch followed and they lived their-approximately 6 months.

**Parties Situation at the time of trial**

Mrs. Blossch was a stay at home wife and had not worked for 3 years. Mr. **Blossch** treated Mrs. Blossch with disrespect, physical, emotional, mental

& financial abuse. This case was presented at an Order to show Cause on September 27, 2002. It went to an Objection hearing on November 5, 2002. It certified for trial on September 29, 2003 and November 7, 2003. The respondent was awarded an amount of 5% of the assets. The petitioner failed to hand in interrogatory requests and drag this caption on for more than a year. Mrs. Blossch was a stay-at-home housewife and Mr. Blossch had become the Captain of the Canadian Air Regional Jet & a Check Airman. Mr. Blossch's income had sky-rocketed and his checks from Skywest in 2002-indicate that he made \$95,384.50-paying taxes of \$22,127.23 leaving him after taxes \$73,257.27. This information was not updated for the trial on September 29, 2003 & November 7, 2003. The information I've supplied for the amounts of \$95,384.50 & 22,127.33 were from a paycheck stub Plaintiff's Exhibit #19-for the time frame of 12/12/02 I have never been on state welfare. I think I'll have to check into it, if something is not done.

I have some health problems due to Mr. Blossch the abuse and the length of time that I endured it. I have been diagnosed with symptoms of Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.

**ALIMONY-**

**Abuse of discretion took place upon direct examination in**  
**demanding that yes or no answers be given only.** See hearing on 2/24/04



Not at anytime, did I ever submit an alimony request as per my needs and wants in the amounts of \$ 2,834.00 and \$2,141.25. They both were answers to an interrogatory request. Neither attorney ever represented the truth to which I explained to them both several times.

At the bench trial on November 7, 2003- I explained this alimony issue to Judge Page. He just brushed it aside. See Transcript for November 7, 2003 Page 42 line 6-page 44- Line 5. It needs to be changed to correctly clarify the conditions of the parties-at the time of marriage. He awarded alimony based upon the money spent during the month of August not an actual need to which I represented \$3400.00 as my need in the Objections Hearing-but it was replaced with the interrogatory request.

1. Alimony- the trial court erred in its distribution of alimony.

Alimony was allocated with incorrect standards of distribution. Findings were based upon an answer to an interrogatory question representing expenditures of respondent/Appellant in a certain month-at which time petitioner had cut of respondent's funds. It was not determined by actual need or correct interpretation of respondent/appellant's actual submission of an alimony request-that was filed with the Answer to the Petition of Divorce Decree and Counterclaim filed 7/26/02.

Micheal Murphy spent approximately 20 minutes with me the entire time.

When the interrogatory requests came he told me that the question asked by Doug Adair, which stated "What are your current monthly expenses meant

what I spent in August after all my money was cut? I put the truth. Not expecting to have it be the sheet to which alimony was deemed off of. I told Mike this at court-when it was represented. Yet, he would not say anything about it. NO one wants to listen. I had not filled out a financial declaration neither had the other party. Nor was I asked to do so. Commissioner Dillion saw this and made comment on it. I fired him! I told the next attorney Denise P. Larkin about this. She filed an objection to the proposed order. A hearing was held on November 5, 2002. This attorney knew what I told her. She did not say it. She said that \$2,834.00 was more realistic of my needs that \$2,141.25 as previously indicated. The \$2,834.00 was the first answer to his interrogatory question and the \$2,141.25 was an amended amount to the same question. I didn't have time to answer this I simply was told by the first attorney's secretary-whom prepared the interrogatory request that I could not put down that I had received welfare. So she would put an amount that reflected actual pricing in the store- but not actual pricing from the welfare system- to which I had been getting my food. I was confused as what to do. It had to be filed that day. Mike was not around-as usual. My first answer to the interrogatory question was for \$2,834.00 and the one for \$2,141.25 was for this same answer after I went home and was able to reflect

on this and found a way to more fairly state an actual representation of welfare. I then filed an amended answer to my interrogatory request

In light of this issue which is brought up many times on the record, see transcript on the Order to show Cause hearing 9/27/04-it states on line 15 on page 1- line 17. I state \$3400.00 as the amount I needed for alimony.

The judges alimony award according to the court states my needs and then it does not list the needs of the petitioner it is inaccurate in its findings and difficult to quote for the records-its reasons when it does not state them. **I**

**would ask that the issue of alimony be remanded to the court to re-**

**determine the amount thereof and the amounts that have been**

**established to be directly on point in determining why the court found**

**the findings that it did.** The fact the court does state does not give a reason

as to why the court found that I could work-based upon 1 witness who never questioned about the abuse-and told me that she didn't want to hear it.

**I asked Denise P. Larkin to go back to court several times to get an increase for alimony. She said she would not and that we could do it**

**at trial.** This is a lie. My attorney simply did not come forward. Also, it states that I never said anything about my condition in the deposition held on February 6, 2003. This is a flat -out lie. I even gave the depositions to the Judge to look at. Please refer to them in the file on page 39 line 10- page 42

line 5. See them. In addition, the minutes for the first attempt at an Order to Show Cause Hearing on September 10, 2002-it states that I am attending Steven-Henager College. This is not correct. I attended this college back in 1992. This was brought forward at trial.

**The Standard of Living** to which the parties enjoyed is incorrectly listed in the decree of divorce. It states that we lived in a modest neighborhood. The court erred in this determination based on no evidence **of any kind**, nor any questioning of any kind-that it placed this in the decree. Remand should be done.

I would like this court to reverse the decision of the trial court and determine alimony based upon my alimony submission sheet of \$ 5,026.87. I would like the court to refer to Respondent's Exhibit # 35 (Financial Declaration), Respondents Exhibit #36 (Explanation of Categories)- which outlines and details what it is that I am accustomed and the individual explanation of categories that explain my needs, Respondents Exhibit # 37 (Explanation of Insurance for Medical and Mental Health with Cobra Insurance Through Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Utah and with the Skywest Mental Health Plan & Explanation of Insurance for Medical and Mental Health for Hipp Insurance-both found under this exhibit #37. I have filed the exhibits from trial with the district court. I have asked for them in

their entirety to be transported to the appellate court. I have also filed Petitioner Exhibits in their entirety. I have asked for them to be submitted in their entirety to the appellate court as well. **They are not in the district Court's file.** I was there on November 12, 2004. **If you need copies of anything I am speaking about or is missing out of my file-please contact me.** See Financial Declarant for Respondent # 35 to know what I'm talking about in this paragraph.

I claimed expenses of \$ 5,026.87 per month and was awarded \$1300.00 per month. Mr. Blossch claimed expenses of \$2, 458.52. The judge awarded him \$2,716.00 a month for living expenses. He found that I had expenses of \$2,550.00 per month. Monthly Incomes & Financial Declarations

<b><u>Category</u></b>	<b><u>Albert</u></b>	<b><u>Category</u></b>	<b><u>Leslie</u></b>
House	898.92	House	898.92
Taxes (home)	75.00	Taxes (home)	75.00
Property Ins.	12.00	Townhome fees	95.00 (pro)
Maintenance	40.00	Townhome Ins.	45.00
Food & household	260.00	Inside Maintenance	75.00
He had nothing listed for		Food & household	300.00
Utilities because he doesn't		(school lunches) when start	90.00
Pay them.		Electricity	55.00
Telephone	50.00	Natural Gas	78.00
Laundry & dry-cleaning	50.00	Water (paid from Condo fee)	
Clothing	30.00	Sewer (\$60.00 year)	5.00 mo.
Medical, prescriptions & co		Garbage (possible)	not needed
\$110.00 month		Telephone	55.00
Dental	100.00	Cellular Phone	125.00
Ins. Prem	57.00	Internet-school	55.00

Entertainment	208.00	Personal Care & Makeup	300.00
Gifts	136.00	Massage Therapy	100.00
Travel	200.00	Singing Lessons	100.00
Auto-fuel, insurance, main- tenance	181.70	Health Insurance 3 years	178.14
auto pay	207.00	Non-covered costs	162.91
install	50.00	Delta Dental Cobra	29.51
		Non-Covered Costs	40.00
		Cobra mental health plan	0
		Non-covered costs	193.02
		Entertainment & Spending	100.00
		Gifts	25.00
		Travel	75.00
		Car Expenses:	
		a. Car insurance	67.40
		b. Car Maintenance	50.00
		c. License/Taxes	10.00
		d. Safety emissions	4.16
		e. gas	140.00
		f. projected car payment within 3 months	450.00
		tax-preparation (200.00) yr.	16.66 mo.
		Total installment payments from page 2=	930.00
		Other expenses	<u>50.00</u>
			\$ 5,026.87

My needs for insurance are as follows. The first three years I am on Cobra Insurance it will cost me \$225.00 now a month. Due to medical issues – in light of the abuse Mr. Blossch has placed upon me and the health care which is standard for all of us to receive, I will need insurance. In 3 years I cannot get a policy anywhere else but through the Hipp insurance program because I have an existing condition-from the doctors. This will

cost about \$485.41-a month with out-of-pocket expenses. Without help will I have to apply for state and federal funding?

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