2004

Leslie D. Blosch v. Albert B. Blosch : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

3. The trial court made proper findings on Albert Blosch's ability to pay.

In addition, the trial court made a proper finding regarding Albert Blosch's ability to pay Leslie Blosch alimony. Specifically, the trial court found that Albert Blosch received a gross salary in his employment with Skywest Airlines at the time of trial of \$7,700.00 per month. The trial court also found that Albert Blosch earned a net income of approximately \$5,500.00 per month at the time of trial. Further, the Court found that Albert Blosch had reasonable monthly expenses of \$2,716.00 per month. (See trial record at page 308.)

The trial court's findings regarding Albert Blosch's ability to pay alimony was well supported by the trial evidence. At trial, Albert Blosch provided his current financial information, including his recent pay check stubs and tax returns

as Petitioner's exhibits. Further, Albert Blosch provided a financial declaration to the Court, that described his expenses in detail. (See Petitioner's exhibits 3 through 20, and Respondent's exhibit 40.) Finally, Albert Blosch testified on the record in great detail regarding his income, debts, and financial situation. (See trial transcript of Albert Blosch testimony.) Based on this information, the Court properly assessed Albert Blosch's ability to pay Leslie Blosch alimony.

4. The trial court made a proper finding on the length of the marriage.

Next, the Court made a proper finding regarding the length of the marriage. The Court properly found that the parties were married on June 12, 1996. Indeed, both parties agreed in their initial pleadings that they were married on this date. (See trial record page 2.) Further, Albert Blosch testified, without dispute, that the parties were married on such date. (See trial transcript of Albert Blosch testimony.)

5. The trial court made a proper finding on the lack of children.

In addition, the trial court made a proper finding that the parties did not have any children and that none were expected. At trial, both parties testified that they did not have any joint children, and that none were expected. At trial, Albert Blosch testified that it was Leslie Blosch who primarily instigated the decision not to have children. (See trial transcript of Albert Blosch testimony.) At trial, Leslie Blosch did not substantially dispute this testimony. (See trial transcript of Leslie Blosch testimony.) Further, Albert Blosch testified without

substantial dispute that Leslie Blosch had abundant free time on her hands, without significant care obligations to any other persons, and with the ready ability to enter the workforce. (See trial transcript of Albert Blosch testimony.)

6. The trial court made a proper finding that Leslie Blosch did not directly contribute to Albert Blosch's education or work related training. It was also clear that Leslie Blosch did not work in any business owned by Albert Blosch.

The trial court further made a specific finding that Leslie Blosch did not make any direct contribution toward Albert Blosch's earning potential by allowing him to attend school, or for paying for any of his training. (See trial record page 2.) Further, the trial record clearly supported this finding. First, Albert Blosch testified that he was already a trained pilot working for Skywest airlines, at the time he met Leslie Blosch. Albert Blosch then testified in great detail that Leslie Blosch did not in any way pay for any of his employment training, in any fashion. Further, the trial record was also clear that Leslie Blosch never worked in any business owned by Albert Blosch. (See trial transcript of Albert Blosch testimony.)

7. The Court properly established a three year alimony period.

Under Utah law, a trial Court clearly has the authority to fashion an alimony award that is less than the length of the marriage. For example, in Childs v. Childs, this Court specifically observed "The appellant argues that she should have been awarded alimony for a period equivalent to the length of the marriage under Utah

Code Ann. § 30-3-5 (Supp. 1998). We have reviewed section 30-3-35 and find nothing to support the argument that the trial court is required to award alimony for a period equivalent to the length of the marriage. Therefore, we affirm the trial court's alimony award." 967 P.2d 942, 947 (Utah Ct. App. 1998).

Arguably, the instant case presents an even stronger justification for a short term alimony award than the Childs case. As in Childs, Albert and Leslie Blosch were married for a relatively short time period. (See trial record at page 1.) However, unlike the Childs case, Albert and Leslie Blosch did not have any children together. (See trial record at page 1.) Based on this and all of the other combined factors, the trial court's three year alimony award was appropriate in this case.

D. The trial court did not abuse its discretion in apportioning marital property between the parties. Instead, the trial court equitably and evenly apportioned marital property between the parties. Indeed, the trial court's property apportionment was favorable to Leslie Blosch in several respects.

A trial court has broad discretion in apportioning marital property between parties in a domestic case. This Court has articulated this principle as follows: "The trial court in a divorce action has considerable discretion in equitably adjusting the financial and property interests of the parties. Because the court's distribution of property is endowed with a presumption of validity, we will not disturb it on appeal unless it is clearly unjust or a clear abuse of discretion. Rasband v. Rasband, 752 P.2d 1331, 1335 (Utah Ct. App. 1998).

In the instant case, the trial court made an equitable apportionment of the parties' marital property, as follows:

1. The Court properly valued and apportioned Albert Blosch's 401(k).

It is clear that the Court properly valued Albert Blosch's 401(k) with his employer Skywest and properly divided the 401(k). At the outset of trial, the parties stipulated to the marital value of the 401(k) at the time of trial to be \$87,425.56. A simple mathematical calculation on the exhibits showed that \$87,425.56 was the marital value of the 401(k) (\$103,750.86 value of the 401(k) at the time of trial, less Albert Blosch's pre-marital contribution of \$16,325.60, equals \$87,425.26). (See Petitioner's exhibits 35 through 38.) In addition, the trial Court awarded Leslie Blosch precisely one half of the marital value in the 401(k), as of the first day of trial. (See trial record at page 395.)

In addition, the Court found that Albert Blosch had acquired some Skywest stock. Again, the Court awarded Leslie Blosch precisely half of the amount of the stock. (See trial record at page 395.)

2. The trial court properly apportioned the real property between the parties.

Further, it is clear that the trial court properly apportioned the real property between the parties. At the outset of trial, the parties stipulated that there was equity in the marital property in the amount of \$33,228.58. (See trial record at page 308.) In its ruling, the Court then apportioned the \$25,079.72 Skywest

401(k) loan which was used to procure the house toward the house, leaving a net equity in the home of \$8,148.86. Again, the Court apportioned this equity equally between the parties through its method of division of assets. (See trial record at page 395.)

3. The trial court properly apportioned personal property between the parties.

Leslie Blosch has no valid claim that the trial court failed to properly apportion personal property between the parties. In actual fact, the trial court applied great detail and precision in apportioning the personal property between the parties. (See trial record at page 395.) At the outset of trial, the parties stipulated as to the value of the respective parties' vehicles. (See trial record at page 308.) Further, at trial, Albert Blosch's witness, appraiser Jerry Erkelens provided detailed testimony on the value of the parties' remaining personal property items. (See trial transcript in regard to Jerry Erkelens.) The trial court did not accept Jerry Erkelens' testimony on face value. Instead, the trial court made certain adjustments in favor of Leslie Blosch based on rebuttal testimony. The trial court then equitably apportioned the personal property value between the parties and paid attention to the redistribution of certain small items. (See trial record at page 395.) Based upon the foregoing, the trial court fairly and equitably apportioned the marital property between the parties in all respects.

E. The trial court did not abuse its discretion in the amount of attorney fees it ordered Albert Blosch to pay over to Leslie Blosch.

Under Utah law, a trial court has broad discretion in determining whether to award a party attorney fees, and what the amount of the award should be. For example this Court has stated “[A] trial court may award attorney fees in divorce and custody proceedings. The decision to award attorney fees rests primarily in the sound discretion of the trial court. However the trial court must base the award on evidence of the receiving spouse’s financial need, the payor’s spouse’s ability to pay, and the reasonableness of the requested fees. Childs v. Childs, 967 P.2d 942, 947 (Utah Ct. App. 1998).

Under this standard, a trial court has discretion to award a requesting party less than the amount that party has actually incurred in attorney fees. For example, in Rasband v. Rasband, the Utah Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court in awarding a wife only half her requested attorney because the case was not particularly difficult from a legal, factual or discovery standpoint. 752 P.2d 1331, 1335 (Utah Ct. App. 1988).

In addition, it is the requesting party that has the burden of presenting evidence to the trial court regarding the reasonableness of the requested fees. For example, in Sorensen v. Sorensen, this Court stated that: “In order to recover attorney fees in a divorce action, the moving party must set forth evidence, 1) demonstrating that the award is reasonable; and 2) establishing the financial need of the requesting party compels the award. 769 P.2d 820, 832 (Utah Ct. App. 1989).

In this case, the trial court considered all of the requisite factors in arriving at its combined \$6,500.00 attorney fee award to Leslie Blosch.

1. The trial Court did make a finding regarding Leslie Blosch's need for attorney fees.

Specifically, the trial court made the requisite finding that Leslie Blosch did not have the ability to pay her attorney fees without invading the substantial assets the court awarded to her at trial. (See trial record at page 395.)

2. The trial court made a finding regarding Albert Blosch's ability to pay the attorney fees.

The trial court also made the necessary finding regarding Albert Blosch's ability to pay Leslie Blosch's attorney fees. Specifically, the trial court found that Albert Blosch had some ability to assist Leslie Blosch in the payment of her fees. (See trial record at page 395.)

3. The trial court also made specific findings regarding reasonableness.

Further, the trial court made a specific finding that the level of fees claimed by Leslie Blosch was unreasonable in relation to the case. Specifically, the trial court found that Leslie Blosch unnecessarily interjected herself into the proceeding, changed attorneys multiple times, and took action to drive up the cost of the proceeding for both parties. On this basis, the court specifically found that the combined level of attorney fees expended by Leslie Blosch's three attorneys was not necessary or reasonable. Moreover, the trial court specifically found that

the case was not complex in terms of legal issues, factual issues, or discovery. Therefore, the trial court awarded Leslie Blosch an additional \$4,000.00 in attorney fees beyond the \$2,500.00 she had already received from Albert Blosch. (See trial record at page 395.) Further, the trial court based its ruling on detailed attorney fee affidavits submitted by both sides. (See trial record at page 348, 350, and 353.)

4. Leslie Blosch has failed to satisfy her burden that the attorney fee award is unreasonable.

Moreover, Leslie Blosch has failed to provide any adequate explanation to indicate why this generous award of \$6,500.00 in attorney fees was not reasonable, in light of a divorce case of this type. Further, it should be noted that Leslie Blosch has ample ability to pay her own attorney fees, through the marital property apportionment that the Court awarded over to her.

F. This Court should award Albert Blosch his reasonable costs and attorney fees incurred on this appeal as against Leslie Blosch. Further, this Court should specifically decline to award Leslie Blosch any attorney fees in connection with this appeal.

1. The Court should award Albert Blosch his attorney fees on appeal.

The Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure authorize this Court to award attorney fees against an appellant when the appellant brings a frivolous appeal. See Utah Rule App. Proc. 33(a) and (b) (2004). Indeed, In Eames v. Eames, the Court imposed attorney fees under this provision against a man that appealed similar issues to the case at bar. 735 P.2d 395, 397 (Utah Ct. App. 1987). In

arriving at the attorney fee award, the Court set forth a three part test on whether this Court should award attorney fees in a case such as this. Specifically, the Court held that a court may impose attorney fees if: (1) The appellant lacks an honest belief in the propriety of the activities in question; (2) The appellant intends to take unconscionable advantage of the other party; and 3) The appellant has an intent to hinder, delay or defraud others. Id. at 397.

In this appeal, it appears that Leslie Blosch's activities satisfy each of these three prongs. First, Leslie Blosch makes repeated statements in her brief, that she should know are simply not true. Leslie Blosch's inaccurate statements include her statement that she was awarded only 5% of the marital assets, her statement that the 401(k) was not properly apportioned despite the on the record stipulation at trial, and her series of false and personal accusations regarding Albert Blosch's character and demeanor.

Further, Leslie Blosch has simply failed to support her arguments by setting forth any supporting case law, that would justify the relief she is seeking. Further, Leslie Blosch is seeking an exorbitant and unreasonable amount of both alimony, and attorney fees. through this appeal.

Finally, Leslie Blosch has filed multiple motions to continue this appeal. It appears that Leslie Blosch has possibly filed these motions for her own gain and benefit to allow herself extended time to work on this appeal, to the disadvantage of Albert Blosch. Based on these combined reasons, this Court

should assess attorney fees against Leslie Blosch.

2. This Court should decline to award Leslie Blosch any attorney fees on appeal.

In order to ordinarily recover attorney fees on appeal under Utah law, an appellant must have typically received attorney fees at trial, and must also then prevail on the main issues on appeal. See Childs. v. Childs, 967 P.2d 942, 947 (Utah Ct. App. 1998).

In this case, Albert Blosch believes that Leslie Blosch is not entitled to prevail on any of the issues set forth in this appeal. Therefore, Albert Blosch believes that the Court should specifically decline to award any attorney fees to Leslie Blosch in connection with this appeal.

G. Leslie Blosch's remaining referenced issues on appeal are not valid appeal issues. Therefore, the Court should decline to rule on these issues.

In her brief, Leslie Blosch has raised a number of other issues by reference. First, Leslie Blosch claims that she did not somehow receive discovery. In actual fact, Albert Blosch provided Leslie Blosch with voluminous and ample discovery. (See trial Court record at page 464, and 487). Moreover, Leslie Blosch did not preserve this issue by filing any motion to compel in the trial court. In addition, Leslie Blosch somehow claims that taxes are an issue. This simply is not a valid issue in light of the fact that it is customary for parties to file separate tax returns after divorce, and the trial court actually ordered Albert Blosch to hold

Leslie Blosch harmless for any tax consequences of his real estate dealings in regard to past years in which the parties filed joint returns. (See trial record at page 915.) On this basis, the Court should decline to address any further issues raised by Leslie Blosch in her brief.

CONCLUSION

The trial court did not abuse its discretion in entering any provisions of the its final ruling, that is on appeal to this Court. Therefore, this Court should affirm the trial court's final ruling, in every respect. Further, this Court should award Albert Blosch his attorney fees and costs in responding to this appeal, as against Leslie Blosch.